
 1 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS  

DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

ORDINANCE NO. L-2017-1 

 

AN ORDINANCE CREATING SECTION 7.17 OF THE  

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS MUNICIPAL CODE 

 

 

RECITALS 

  

A. The Village Board is committed to protecting the health, safety, and welfare 

of pedestrians and drivers in the Village, and ensuring the free flow of traffic with the 

Village. 

 

B. The primary purpose of pPeedestrian rRefuge iIslands and medians are to 

enhance the safety of and free flow of traffic on highways by separating opposing lanes of 

vehicular traffic, channeling traffic for turning purposes, and, in some cases, providing a 

temporary refuge for pedestrians crossing busy and/or wide highways.  

 

C. Village staff has compiled three reports (Exhibit 1: 2016 Calls for Service, 

Exhibit 2: 2016 Calls for Service Summary No Chart, and Exhibit 3: 2016 Accidents at the 

Following Intersections) that indicate certain intersections, identified as Covered 

Intersections, which experience significant accident rates, significant numbers of calls for 

police services and significant numbers of traffic stops. 

  

D. Village staff also has identified certain intersections, identified as Covered 

Intersections, which experience significant volumes of traffic and significant speeds.  

 

E. Prolonged pedestrian use of such Covered Intersections poses a safety hazard 

to the user and passing motor vehicles and can inhibit the free flow of traffic. 

 

F. The Village Board finds it is in the best interests of the public health, safety, 

and welfare to adopt this Ordinance to protect pedestrians and motorists on Covered 

Intersections. 

 

 

ORDINANCE 

 

The Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane County, Wisconsin, 

ordains as follows: 

 



 2 

1. Section 7.17 of the Municipal Code of the Village of Shorewood Hills is created as 

follows: 

 

7.17 Entering or Staying Upon Highways Restricted.  

 

(1) Purpose.  Pedestrians are increasingly using highways in ways for which the 

roads were not designed. These uses include approaching vehicles when in use or staying 

upon Pedestrian Refuge Islands for purposes other than crossing the highway. These 

activities create safety hazards for pedestrians and distract drivers, making automobile 

crashes more likely. This ordinance is designed to decrease the safety hazards by regulating 

pedestrians faced by pedestrians and motorists. These safety concerns hazards are most 

acute on the busiest streets within the Village of Shorewood Hills, defined as Covered 

Intersections.  

 

(2) Definitions.  As used in this ordinance,  

 

(a) “Covered Intersection” is defined in sub. (7).  

 

(b) A vehicle is “in operation” when it has an operator, as defined in Wis. 

Stat. § 340.01(41).  

 

(c) “Median” is the area that lies between and divides two opposite 

directions of a divided highway and is not intended for vehicular travel. 

 

(3) No pedestrian shall be on a Median within 200 feet of a Covered Intersection 

and approach any vehicle in operation, except a vehicle that is legally parked at the curb or 

the shoulder.  

 

(4) No pedestrian shall remain upon a Median within 200 feet of a Covered 

Intersection through two consecutive opportunities to cross the highway in a legal manner 

under this Chapter and the state traffic laws adopted herein. This may include a change in 

the traffic control signal or lack of traffic, as applicable. After such two consecutive 

opportunities, such person shall not be considered to be “using the safety zone or crosswalk 

to cross the highway” for purposes of the exception in sub. (6)(a).  

 

(5) No operator of a vehicle shall park, stop or leave standing a vehicle on a 

Covered Intersection where prohibited or suddenly decrease the speed of said vehicle or 

deviate from a traffic lane for the purpose of responding to persons violating subs. (3) 

or (4).  

 

(6) Exceptions.  This Ordinance does not apply to (a) pedestrians using the 

safety zone or crosswalk to cross the highway; (b) persons engaged in law enforcement or 

rescue activities, including providing assistance to an injured or disabled vehicle or person; 



 3 

(c) persons entering a vehicle as an invited passenger where it is lawful to do so, including 

activity permitted under Wis. Stat. § 346.29(1) (taxis); (d) persons engaged in repair or 

maintenance activities on the highway under the direction or authority of the Village of 

Shorewood Hills or the State of Wisconsin; or (e) streets or portions thereof that have been 

closed pursuant to a street use permit or other express authorization from the Village.  

 

(7) Covered Intersections.  This ordinance applies only to Covered 

Intersections, the portions of highways within the Village of Shorewood Hills that have the 

most traffic, listed as follows (refer to attached map): 

 

(a) University Avenue and Rose Place 

(b) University Avenue and Shorewood Boulevard 

(c) University Avenue and Highbury Road 

(d) University Avenue and Marshall Court 

(e) University Avenue and University Bay Drive 

 

(8) Penalty.  Any person violating this ordinance may be required to forfeit not 

less than twenty-five dollars ($25) nor more than three hundred dollars ($300). Officers are 

encouraged to provide a warning for a first offense. 

 

2. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law. 

 

 

The above and foregoing ordinance was duly adopted by the Village Board of the 

Village of Shorewood Hills at its meeting held on _______________________, 2017. 

 

     APPROVED: 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Dave Benforado, Village President 

 

       ATTEST: 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Colleen Albrecht, Village Clerk 

 



kj kj

kj

kj

kj

University Avenue 
and Rose Place

University Avenue 
and Highbury Road University Avenue and 

Shorewood Boulevard

University Avenue and 
University Bay Drive

University Avenue
and Marshall Court

Bluff S
t

University Ave

Harvey St

Locust Dr

Stevens S
t

Topping Rd

Tally Ho Ln

Harvard Dr

E
u

g
e

n
ia

 A
v
e

N
 M

e
a

d
o

w
 L

n

N
 M

id
v
a

le
 B

lv
d

F
a

rl
e

y
 A

v
e

R
id

g
e

 S
t

Kendall Ave

N
 B

la
c
k
h

a
w

k
 A

v
e

N
 F

ra
n

k
lin

 A
v
e

N
 O

w
e

n
 D

r

Marshall Ct

Heather Crst

C
o
lu

m
b
ia

R
d

Lucia Crst

Colgate Rd

Barlow St

U
n
ive

rsity
B

ay
D

r

S
h
o
re

w
o

o
d

B
lv

d

Chamberlain Ave

H
ill

 S
t

R
o
s
e

P
l

Y
a
le

R
d

S
h

e
p

a
rd

 T
e

r

N
H

ill
si

de Ter

McKinley St

C
o

rn
e

ll 
C

t

P
a

lo
m

in
o

 L
n

B
ru

c
e

 C
t

Oak Way
B

u
rb

a
n

k
 P

l

H

ig
hbury Rd

Ramps

H
u nter Hl

E
d

g
e

h
ill

 D
r

Van Hise Ave

Frey St

Franklin Ct

W
e

s
te

rn
 R

d

H
ig

h
la

n
d

A
ve

J
o

y
c
e

E
r d

m
a

n
P

l

Purdue St

Hilldale Blvd

Overlook Ter

B
e

lo
it
 C

t

Rocky L e
d
g
e

L
n

H
ig

h
b

u
ry

 R
d

N
 M

id
v
a

le
 B

lv
d

S
h
e
p

a
rd

T
e

r

Stevens St

Van Hise Ave

LEGEND

Streets

Village Boundary

¯
Date Map Printed: 5/24/2017

0 250 500125

Feet

Intersection Locations with Center Median Restrictions

Intersection Locations with Center Median Restrictions



 

Exhibit 1 
 





 

Exhibit 3 
 

 



VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS  

DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

ORDINANCE NO. L-2017-2 

 

AN ORDINANCE CREATING AND RENUMBERING SEC. 17.06(10)(A)9. AND 10.  

OF THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS MUNICIPAL CODE 

 

 

 The Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane County, Wisconsin, 

ordains as follows: 

 

1. Section 17.06(10)(a)9. and 10. of the Municipal Code of the Village of Shorewood 

Hills is created and renumbered as follows: 

 

17.06  Licensing of Dogs and Cats; Regulation of Pets.  
 

(10)  Restriction on Keeping of Pets.  

 

(a) No person having the possession or ownership of a pet shall:  

 

9. Allow a pet to habitually be on another person’s property without 

permission from the property owner. 

 

109. Have an unlicensed dog or cat, except in accordance with section 

17.06(7)(a)9.  

 

2. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law. 

 

 

The above and foregoing ordinance was duly adopted by the Village Board of the 

Village of Shorewood Hills at its meeting held on ____________________, 2017. 

 

     APPROVED: 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Dave Benforado, Village President 

     ATTEST: 

 

 

       _____________________________ 

       Colleen Albrecht, Village Clerk 



7/14/2017 2:57 PM 1 

VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

DANE COUNTY WISCONSIN 

 

ORDINANCE NO. L-2017-3 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 7.08(2) OF THE VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

RELATING TO PARKING  
 
 The Village Board of the Village of Shorewood Hills, Dane County, Wisconsin, 

ordains as follows:  
 

1. Section 7.08(2) of the Municipal Code of the Village of Shorewood Hills is 

amended as follows:  
 

7.08 Parking, Stopping, and Standing Regulated. 
 
(2) No parking. No owner or operator of a motor vehicle may permit the same to 

stop, to be parked or to be left standing, upon any portion of the following streets at 

the following locations, except temporarily for the purpose of and while actually 

engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers and while 

the motor vehicle is attended by a licensed operator so that it may be promptly be 

moved in case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic:  

 

 On Beloit Court during the hours of 6:00 am to 7:00 pm (excluding 

Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays) except by resident permit;  

……. 

 Along the West side of Edge Hill Drive between Edge Hill Parkway to Lake 

Mendota Drive. 
 

2. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law. 
 

The above and foregoing ordinance was duly adopted by the Village Board of the 

Village of Shorewood Hills at its meeting held on ____________________, 2017.   
 

APPROVED:  

 

   

Dave Benforado, Village President 

 

ATTEST:  

 

  

Colleen Albrecht, Village Clerk 



















 1 

Plan Commission Conditional Use Permit Review Lake Mendota 

Drive Projects 
 

The Plan Commission shall forward its written advisory recommendation to the Village Board 

within thirty (30) days after receipt of the application from the Zoning Administrator.  The Plan 

Commission shall recommend approval, approval subject to specified conditions, or denial.  A 

recommendation for denial shall include the reasons, including which standards contained in the 

Plan Commission review are found not to be met. 

Property: 3616 Lake Mendota Drive  

 

A conditional use shall be approved under this paragraph only if the applicant 

demonstrates by clear and convincing evidence the following: 

 

1. Views of Lake Mendota from points off the lot on which the development or excavation 

proposed will not be adversely affected.  No adverse impact on views. 

 

2. Erosion will not be increased. No increase. Erosion control measures during 

construction subject to Village  approval.  
 

3. The flow of surface water will not be changed so as to adversely affect other lots, the lake 

and other aspects of the natural environment.  No adverse change anticipated.  Project 

subject to review and approval  by Village  Engineer. 

 

4. Infiltration of surface water into the ground will not be adversely affected. No adverse 

impact. 
 

5.   Access to properties and structures by firefighters and other emergency personnel will not 

be  adversely effected: No adverse impact.  

 

The Plan Commission shall review the application according to the standards below.  No 

application shall be recommended for approval by the Plan Commission unless it finds that 

the following conditions are met:   

 

1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use will not be 

detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general 

welfare. 

Finding:  True 



 2 

 

2. That the uses, values and enjoyment of other property in the neighborhood for 

purposes already permitted shall be in no foreseeable manner substantially impaired 

or diminished by the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use 

and the proposed use is compatible with the use of adjacent land. 

Finding:  True 

 

3. That the establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and 

orderly development and improvement of the surrounding property for uses 

permitted in the district, and will not be contrary to an adopted comprehensive plan 

of the Village. 

Finding:  True 

 

4. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary site 

improvements have been, are being or will be provided. 

Finding:  True 

 

5. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the conditional use is unlikely 

to increase the level of traffic congestion or reduce the level of safety at any point 

on the public streets.  

Finding:  True 

 

6. That the conditional use shall conform to all applicable regulations of the district in 

which it is located. 

Finding: True 

 

7. That the conditional use does not violate flood plain regulations governing the site. 

Finding:  True 

 

8. That, when applying the above standards to any new construction of a building, or 

an addition to an existing building, the Plan Commission and Board shall bear in 

mind the statement of purpose for the zoning district such that the proposed 

building or addition at its location does not defeat the purposes and objectives of 

the zoning district. 

Finding:  True 

 

The Plan Commission shall also evaluate the effect of the proposed conditional use 

upon: 

 The maintenance of safe and healthful conditions. 



 3 

Finding:  True 

 

 The prevention and control of water pollution including sedimentation. 

Finding:  True 

 

 Existing topographic and drainage features and vegetative cover on the site. 

Finding:  True 

 

 The location of the site with respect to floodplains and floodways of rivers and 

streams. 

Finding:  True 

 

 The erosion potential of the site based upon degree and direction of slope, soil type 

and vegetative cover. 

Finding:  True 

 

 The location of the site with respect to existing or future access roads. 

Finding:  True 

 

 The need of the proposed use for a shoreland location. 

Finding:  True 

 

 Its compatibility with uses on adjacent land. 

Finding:  True 

 

Any other requirements necessary to fulfill the purpose and intent of the Zoning Code of the 

Village of Shorewood Hills conditions required: 

Compliance with: 

o Stormwater Management Ordinance 

o Erosion Control Ordinance 

o Noise Ordinance 

o Dark Sky (Regulated Illumination) Ordinance 

The applicant should be aware that planned construction of a home will trigger stormwater 

management control compliance and that landscaping done now should take into 



 4 

consideration  the  future need for infiltration areas, rain gardens or other stormwater  

management facilities in areas that may be landscaped prior to construction and may need 

to be modified or destroyed and  replaced.   

 



1 of 3 

 

Village of Shorewood Hills 

Board of Trustees Special Work Session 

Approved Minutes 

Thursday, September 22, 2016  5:30 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  Village President Mark Sundquist called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m.  

 

2. Roll Call  Members of the Board present were Mr. Sundquist and Trustees David Benforado, 

Anne Readel, Mark Lederer, Felice Borisy-Rudin, Fred Wade and John Imes. Also in attendance 

were Village Administrator Karl Frantz, Police Chief Denny Pine, Department of Public Works 

Chief John Mitmoen and Village Clerk Cokie Albrecht. There was one visitor in the audience. 

 

3. Statement of Public Notice  Mr. Frantz confirmed the meeting had been properly posted and 

noticed.  

 

4. Board matters  

A. Planning/needs discussion regarding Village properties and facilities  

Mr. Wade referenced Mr. Frantz’s memo dated September 22, 2016 regarding the Village’s debt 

capacity. If more borrowing were undertaken for facilities, the Village’s internal debt policy may 

need to be revised. The Trustees acknowledged other capital needs may arise in the future, 

including road reconstruction, replacement of water/sewer mains and the installation of sidewalks 

on the west side of the Village.  

The Trustees chose to discuss the Village facilities individually. Some of the comments: 

Community Center/Pool 

 The Community Center is outdated. It needs to be made handicapped accessible, it 

requires roof repairs and cosmetic updates. Its use has dropped off.  

 There has been conversation about needed improvements to the Community Center since 

1997. Kubala Washatko‘s plans for its renovations are beautiful but would be expensive 

to implement.  

 The Pool is not a year-round facility; there is significant interest in a swimming venue 

that is open all year.  

 What does the Village want there? The more popular/attractive the Pool and Community 

Center are, the greater impact on traffic and parking.  

 Idea: rearrange facilities at Post Farm Park, e.g., move the tennis courts to the parking lot, 

parking to Marshall Court.  

 Per Mr. Mitmoen, if the Pool were improved, all mechanicals should be evaluated.  

 What are the goals of Pool improvements? How many members does the Village want to 

join the Pool?  

 The Pool Committee is looking at installing a diving well on its east side, where the 

tennis courts are presently located.  

 Members of the Services Committee are not interested in discussing renovations to the 

Community Center; they feel it should be torn down and reconstructed.  

 Given current debt levels, only incremental improvements to the facility should be 

considered at this time.  

 Renovations to the Community Center/Pool should be considered as part of a 

comprehensive plan to improve all of Post Farm Park, including the possible relocation of 

tennis courts and rerouting of traffic.  

 Incremental repairs/improvements can be made to the Community Center until a 

comprehensive plan is developed.  

 The Pool Committee determined the installation of an inflatable dome over the pool for 

part of the year was impractical. The construction of a covered facility in the future may 

be possible—perhaps enclosing a new diving well/smaller pool.  



 

2 of 3 

 

 The Pool will pay off its debt in 2017 and then will have large financial capacity to make 

improvements.  

 The Pool Committee would be willing to participate in upgrades to the Community 

Center. It is waiting for guidance from the Trustees to inform its thinking about whether 

it should concentrate on renovations to the pool facility only. 

 There was concurrence that a master plan for the entire Post Farm Park is needed. The 

future of the Scout Shack would be part of that discussion. 

Village Hall 

 Chief Pine would like to see clearer separation of court and police functions and a 

reception area.  

Department of Public Works (DPW) Building (“1008”) 

 The DPW Building is underutilized. Its central location would make it a great gathering 

spot for the Village community. A request for proposals could identify a vendor who 

would run a café/coffee shop in a portion of the building.  

 Ten to 15 years from now, Shorewood Hills could finance the reconstruction of the 

building by selling other property. A new municipal building could be built there, which 

would include a ~ three story building for all government functions.  

 Parking at the 1008 property is limited.  

 Idea: relocate DPW Building to Marshall Court.  

 Mr. Mitmoen said space at the DPW Building is tight, though the new cold storage 

facility to be built on Old Middleton Road will help.  

 Currently the required co-mingling of activities at the DPW Building is not safe.  

 Possible to relocate all DPW activities to the proposed storage location on Old Middleton 

Road? Mr. Mitmoen replied that the site is not large enough to accommodate a building 

that would serve all of the DPW needs.  

 Possible to renovate the DPW Building to provide more storage bays? Mr. Mitmoen said 

it would be possible to remodel the building so it was more usable.  

 An alternative would be to tear down 1008 and construct a building that better meets the 

DPW’s needs. The new building could include the café/gathering space.  

 The EMS and Fire Association does not need a permanent, dedicated space at the DPW 

Building. However, the Mac fire truck is stored in one of its bays.  

 A reconstructed DPW Building may cost $1-$2 million.  

 Any improvements to a building at 1008 would require careful consideration of its 

architecture; it would need to be compatible with the residential neighborhood.  

 TIF could not be used to finance a municipal building.  

 Idea: offer some space in the new building to be built at Old Middleton Road to 

Blackhawk Country Club in exchange for more property on the site. Then a larger DPW 

Building could be constructed there. Other Village departments could be relocated to 

1008.  

 Mr. Mitmoen said he would prefer to have all DPW functions in one place. He likes the 

current central location of the DPW Building—relocating to Old Middleton Road would 

make the Village less accessible for DPW activities.  

 If a portion of 1008 were used as a community meeting spot, it would have to be staffed.  

 Several years ago relocating the DPW Building to under Post Farm Park was considered. 

Under that plan, the building would have opened onto Marshall Court.  

 Idea: sell 1008 for townhouses and a café.  

 Look into what would be needed to make the present DPW Building a two to three story 

building with offices, a community space/café/library and a DPW facility.  

 Renovation of the DPW Building would command a higher priority than the master plan 

for the Post Farm Park facilities.  

 



 

3 of 3 

 

Boathouse 

 The inside of the Boathouse was upgraded with new paint and storage racks. 

 The roof of the facility continues to require patching.  

 Proposed improvements to the facility—new lights, roof, etc., —could be done without 

spending a lot of money.  

Heiden Haus 

 The facility could be improved with updated doors, deck, bathroom. The latter is 

routinely vandalized.  

 Resident Tracy Kozial said a group of residents is developing a master plan for 

Shorewood Hills Elementary School’s south playground. Renovations to the Heiden 

Haus would be included in the plan. The proposed improvements would be funded 

largely through donations.  

Marina Building  

 Mr. Mitmoen said the building was recently painted; the roof is adequate; it serves its 

purpose as a storage facility.  

 Chief Pine said vandalism is an issue at both the Marina Building and Boathouse. He will 

look into the cost of installing cameras there.  

Four Corners Park 

 The play structure needs to be replaced at a cost of $30,000 - $60,000.  

 The bathrooms need to be updated.  

Conclusions 

 The Finance Committee will be asked to evaluate how much can be borrowed in the next 

few years. Future borrowing may require the revision of the Village’s internal debt 

policy.  

 Improvements to the DPW Building will take precedence over the Post Farm Park master 

plan. The latter will look at all the facilities in the Park.  

 The Post Farm Park master plan will be developed with extensive citizen input.  

 The Shorewood Hills League is interested in investing in cosmetic upgrades to the 

Community Center, including new floors, blinds, etc. These improvements will not be 

made if the building were slated for demolition.  

 The Pool Committee and Shorewood Hills League could be told, at some point in the 

future, “The Village is willing to do X with the Community Center/Pool at $X cost. The 

Pool’s cost would be $X; fund raising could provide $X.”  Mr. Frantz will talk with the 

Shorewood Hills League and Pool Committee to get their thoughts.  

 Fund raising for a portion of the Post Farm Park improvement costs is envisioned.  

 An ad hoc committee could be formed to oversee the Post Farm Park master planning 

process. The plan may take a few years to develop, with community input.  

 DPW functions will remain centered at 1008. Its staff will look at the department’s space 

needs in a mixed use building there. This will include a two to three story portion for 

offices and a community meeting room/coffee shop. The building would also provide 

storage bays and work areas for the DPW. Its exterior will be compatible with the 

residential neighborhood.  

 Proposals to relocate the DPW to another area—on Old Middleton Road or under Post 

Farm Park were rejected: the former because of the space’s inefficiency and the latter 

because it would be politically impractical.  

 

5. Adjourn  Meeting adjourned at 8:57 p.m.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Colleen Boyle Albrecht, Village Clerk 













~ 5 year projection of capital needs by date Updated 3-17-17

Capital Need Year Paid to 
Date

Est. Amt. 
Needed

Funding 
Source(s)

Suggested 

Committee 

Referral

Comments Category

1 Repair Overhang at Pool 2015 13,822 0 Capital Fund / Pool 

Fund

Pool 50/50 split $27,644 between Pool Fund and Capital Fund. Was not initially 
included in 2015 borrowing. Original estimate $12K.

Facilities Completed

2 Pier at Marina, Moorings at 

Marina & McKenna Park

2015 28,800 0 Marina Program Waterfront Pay using fund balance. Reimbursed by Marina Program. Original estimate 
$40K. Paid for from 2014 Marina fund balance.

Facilities Completed

3 Replace Modine Heating Units 

at DPW Building

2015 5,070 0 Capital Fund Services Beyond serviceable life. Approved by Board on 1-20-15. Original estimate 
$5,500.

Facilities Completed

4 DPW Building Exterior Repairs 2015 20,801 0 Capital Fund Services Repairs to the building exterior including stucco and paint. Received bid for 
~$21K.

Facilities Completed

5 Basement HVAC units at 

Village Hall

2015 15,797 0 Capital Fund Services Maintenance, expected life. One unit has failed. Estimate ~9,000 to replace. 
Can save money if all are replace, ~$7,000 each.

Facilities Completed

6 Tool Cat with stump grinder 

and other attachments

2015 60,439 0 Capital Fund Services 2005 Forester truck #3 life could be extended 5-10 years (low mileage, good 

condition). Purchase Tool Cat to share between departments for work in the 

parks, planting trees, plowing in the winter. Avoid Forester using his personal 

vehicle. Avoid skid steer exceeding lease hours. Purchase would eliminate need 

to replace 4wd Snow Machine in 2020 (~$50K). Purchased in April 2015. 
Original estimate $60K.

Equipment Purchased

7 squad car 2015 28,372 0 General Fund-

Operating

Public 

Health & 

Safety

Two Year rotation of vehicles. Includes equipment. Purchased in April 2015. 
Original estimate $28,500.

Equipment Purchased

8 Road resurfacing of streets on 

west side of Village

2015 756,222 0 Capital Fund Public 

Works

Mill and resurface streets. Original estimate $800-926K. Streets Completed

Subtotal 2015 929,323 0 

9 Line Lake Mendota Sanitary 

Sewer

2016 168,000 0 Capital Fund/ 

Sewer Fund

Public 

Works

Subject to root problems, difficult to maintain, costly to replace. Bids received 
and approved for work, projected cost = $193,080.

Facilities Completed

10 Update accounting software 2016 13,000 0 Capital Fund/ All 

Funds-Operating

Board Share amongst all department, utilities, pool. Streamline office operations 

including utility billing, accounts payable and customer access to bills. Total 
$39K paid over 3 years.

Equipment Paid

11 Pave Blackhawk CC parking 

lot

2016 141,477 0 Capital Fund Public 

Works

BCC to repay over life of 2015 borrowing. Original estimate $180K. Streets Completed

12 Road resurfacing of streets on 

west side of Village

2016 278,816 0 Capital Fund Public 

Works

Mil and resurface streets remaining streets on west side of Village. Grant for 
Oxford Road ~$42K.

Streets Completed

13 University Bay Drive/University 

Avenue improvements

2016 394,110 0 Capital Fund Board TID 3 - Widen the southbound lane and bike path south of 700 UBD TID TID 3

Completed

Subtotal 2016 995,403 0 

14 Phone system 2017 0 20,000 Capital Fund/ All 

Funds-Operating

Board Share amongst all departments. The present phone system is problematic. Yet to 

determine upgrade vs. new and hosted vs. in-house.

Equipment Not in 

current 

plan

15 Playground equipment at Post 

Farm Park & 4 Corners Park

2017 0 0 Donations Recreation/ 

Parks

Cost of new equipment to be offset or paid for entirely by fundraising.  Address 

safety of some of the playground equipment. Est. cost $30K.
Facilities

16 4 Corners bathroom & shelter 

improvements

2017 0 20,000 Donations/Capital 

Fund

Services The improvements would need to bring the building into compliance with ADA 

requirements: Expand bathroom, ramp to shelter deck. Could be partially or 
totally funded by donation.

Facilities Not in 

current 

plan

17 Cold storage building 2017 0 653,760 Capital Fund Services/ 

Board

Reason: Scheduled loss of Degen building prior to 2018. Amount is for 

construction of ~60' x100' building for storage of DPW, Police and Fire/EMS 

Association equipment (Cost Est $624K+Site Prep).

Facilities

18 Update accounting software 2017 0 13,000 Capital Fund/ All 

Funds-Operating

Board Share amongst all department, utilities, pool. Total $39K paid over 3 years. 
Payment 2 of 3.

Equipment

19 Chipper 2017 0 41,385 Capital Fund Services Replaces 2007 model, worth ~$5,000. Equipment

20 squad car 2017 0 29,500 General Fund-

Operating

Public 

Health & 

Safety

Two Year rotation of vehicles. Includes equipment. Equipment Ordered

21 Locust Drive, bike path at 

Maple Terrace

2017 0 220,000 Capital Fund Board TID 4 - Improvement to bike path intersections with Locust Drive and Maple 

Terrace. Est. $100-200K.
TID TID 4

Subtotal 2017 0 997,645 

22 Update accounting software 2018 0 13,000 Capital Fund/ All 

Funds-Operating

Board Share amongst all department, utilities, pool. Total $39K paid over 3 years. 
Payment 3 of 3.

Equipment

23 McKenna Park Beach House 

roof repairs and railing 

replacement

2018 0 15,000 Marina Program/ 

Capital Fund

Waterfront/ 

Services

Pay using fund balance. Reimbursed by Marina program. On hold pending 
Waterfront Committee decision. Metal railing was shored up in 2015. Still 
needs to be replace for ~$5,000.

Facilities

24 DPW Building Interior Repairs 2018 0 25,000 Capital Fund Services Repairs to the building interior including conversion of the former Intern quarters 

and dayroom to meeting or office space. Includes repurposing offices and 

storage space for DPW office, Forester office and historic file storage.

Facilities

25 Repair Roof at Community 

Center

2018 0 50,000 Capital Fund/ Pool 

Fund/General Fund-

Operating

Services/ 

Pool

Portion of expense to be shared by Pool (50/50). Minor repairs completed in 
2015, major repairs should be done in 2-3 years.

Facilities

26 Demolition of Scout Shack 

build park pavillion

2018 0 0 Donations Parks/ 

Recreation

If cold storage built, fireworks equipment stored in Scout Shack could be 

relocated. Demolish building in favor of a simple park pavillion. Est. cost $50K.
Facilities

27 Leaf picker 2018 0 40,000 Capital Fund Services Replaces 1999 model, worth ~$1,000. Equipment

28 Completion of bike path south 

of Marshall Court

2018 0 311,000 Capital Fund Board TID 3 - University Station to University Bay Drive. Portion of work may be done 
in 2017. Partially reimbursed by PARC grant.

TID TID 3

29 Marshall Court: Street & Utility 

Improvements

2018 0 850,000 Capital Fund Board TID 3 - Extend water and sewer from Arbor Crossing west to railroad tracks. 

Improve streetscape, road, etc. with utilities.

TID TID 3

Subtotal 2018 0 1,304,000 

30 Roof top air handling unit at 

Village Hall

2019 0 20,000 Capital Fund Services Maintenance, expected life on units installed in 1997. Facilities

31 Squad car 2019 0 30,500 General Fund-

Operating

Public 

Health & 

Safety

Two Year rotation of vehicles. Includes equipment. Equipment

32 Mid-sized plow 2019 0 55,000 Capital Fund Services Replaces 2008 model, worth ~$4,000. Equipment

Subtotal 2019 0 105,500 

33 Boiler at Community Center 2020 0 100,000 Capital Fund/ Pool 

Fund

Services/ 

Pool

Installed in 1996. Expense to be shared 25/75: Village/Pool. Facilities

34 Restain/paint Village Hall 2020 0 15,000 General Fund-

Operating

Services Maintenance. Facilities

35 Tallyho booster station - 

replace pump (1 of 3), repaint

2020 0 25,000 Water Utility Public 

Works

Paid for by water utility. The two other pumps have been repaired or replaced in 

recent years (Est. 25 year life)

Facilities

36 Bobcat all terrain vehicle 2020 0 18,000 Capital Fund Services Replaces 2008 model, worth ~$1,000. Equipment

37 Toro 4wd snow machine 2020 0 49,500 Capital Fund Services Replaces 2008 model, worth ~$10,000. Equipment

45 Community Center/Pool 2020 0 2,000,000 Capital Fund/Pool 

Fund/General Fund-

Operating

Pool Reason: Becoming obsolete. Limited accessibility. Locker room/showers 

renovation. (Est. range $0.5-2.0M) 
Facilities

Subtotal 2020 0 2,207,500 

38 Full-size dump truck 2021 0 105,000 Capital Fund Services Replaces 2001 model. Becomes full-time leaf truck. Equipment

39 Toro zero-turn mower 2021 0 19,000 Capital Fund Services Replaces 2012 model, worth ~$3,000. Equipment

Subtotal 2021 0 124,000 

40 Forester's Truck 2022 0 45,000 Capital Fund Services Replaces 2008 Truck #3 Equipment

41 Sewer Jeter w/TV Camera 2022 0 124,000 Capital Fund Services Replaces 2010 Sewer Jeter Equipment

42 Street Sweeper 2022 0 200,000 Capital Fund Services Replaces 2007 Elgin Street Sweeper Equipment

43 Widening East Side of Univ. 

Bay Drive

2022 0 850,000 Capital Fund Board TID 3 r 6 - Work to be in conjunction with redesign of University Avenue / UBD 

bike overpass project

TID TID 3 or 6

44 Univ. Ave Reconstruction 

(Shorewood to Campus Dr)

2022 2,500,000 Capital Fund Board Est. range $2-3M. Village to incur design costs up to ~$500K beginning in 2017. TID TID 3 or 6

46 DPW Building 2022 0 2,000,000 Capital Fund Services Reason: Building underutilized, garages overcrowded, operational deficiencies. 

(Est. range $0.5-2.0M).
Facilities TID 3 or 6

Subtotal 2022 0 5,719,000 

COLUMN TOTALS 1,924,726 10,457,645 

Page 1 Projected 5 Year Capital Plan (rev July 8 2016).xls











 

 

MINUTES FOR THE VILLAGE OF SHOREWOOD HILLS 

PLAN COMMISSION 

 

The Tuesday June 13, 2017 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order at 7:00p.m. by 

David Benforado.  On call of the roll members present were: Karl Wellensiek, Jim Etmanczyk, 

Brauna Hartzell, Earl Munson, John Imes and Debra Remington.  Also present was Karl Frantz, 

Village Administrator and Karla Endres, Deputy Clerk. 

 

Called to order – 7:01 pm 

 

Approve previous meeting minutes 

Deferred minutes until later 

 

Public Hearing on conditional use 

Opened public hearing at 7:02 pm 

Bridget from Architectural Building Arts explained the proposed project.  The property owners 

would like to increase the safety of the property by widening the driveway as well as construct 

steps from the street to the house for a safe visitor access and a storage building.  

Mr. Munson asked if Architectural Building Arts has done any landscape projects in the Village.  

He also inquired what the storage area would be used for. 

Bridget explained that the storage would be a case by case basis depending on each particular 

location.  Another factor in the storage plan would depend on what the hardship of the lot would 

be as well as aesthetics.   

Mr. Frantz explained the zoning code with respect to accessory structures in the front yard.  He 

explained there are height and square footage restrictions in the zoning code with respect to a 

structure. 

Bridget spoke to the homeowners and stated that they have not directly spoke with the neighbors 

but have not heard anything negative back with respect to the mailing sent out by the Village.  

Bridget stated the grade of the pavement would stay the same and no major changes would take 

place due to drainage concerns. 

Mr. Benforado asked about the stormwater management. 

Bridget stated they would be adding to the current retention system and they would be adding 

another basin in the driveway.  This particular property has already improved the stormwater 

drainage from the prior renovations to the property but will be adding to it with the driveway 

project.   

Closed the public hearing at 7:26 pm 

Mr. Munson stated he is opposed to storage units in the front yard in general due to the aesthetic 

appeal and image it gives the village.  He also disagrees with the need of a storage unit. 

Bridget stated the safety is the main concern of the homeowners.   

Mrs. Remington asked if they could change this to a garage instead of a storage shed.   

Mr. Frantz stated they would need a conditional use permit with a detached garage.  It would be 

the same process as this storage shed requires. 

Mr. Munson suggested they expand the house and garage to mitigate the issue. 

Bridget explained that would be a possibility but a greater financial hardship for the client. 

Mrs. Hartzell asked what the conditions would be if they were to put the shed on the lake side. 

Mr. Benforado stated he does not want a storage unit on the front side of many homes or any 

homes.  In this particular case, he is ok with it and thinks it is nicely done.  He likes the safety 

features of the steps but would like to see the pervious surface of this space improved.   



 

 

Mr. Frantz stated this property is in compliance with the stormwater retainage.  They have 

complied with the stormwater management plan with a couple previous projects. 

Mr. Wellensiek moved and Mr. Munson seconded board approval of the Rhode Nevelle project 

with renewal of the driveway and sidewalks. 

Mr Benforado moved the amendment of approval of the storage unit to be included in the first 

motion. 

Mr. Imes stated he would second the motion for discussion because he is hearing enough concern 

from commission members. 

Voted: 0-7 

Amendment to the motion fails 

Bridget asked where the client would be able to put the storage shed if it were not allowed in the 

front yard.   

Mr. Frantz stated in the backyard there would be issues with the lake set back line. 

Voting on the original motion to recommend village board approval of the Rhode Nevelle project 

with renewal of the driveway and sidewalks. 

Voted: 7-0 

Passed unanimously. 

Mr. Munson stated the commission should talk about permeable surface by the lake for future 

projects such as this.  

 

Approval of Minutes 

Mr. Etmanczyk moved and Mrs. Hartzell seconded a motion to approve the March 14 meeting 

minutes. 

Voted: 7-0 

Passed unanimously 

 

Zoning code updates 

Mr. Frantz stated he and Mr. Benforado discussed cleaning up portions of the zoning code by 

taking on portions that are unclear.   

Mr. Imes asked if there were problems on the commercial or residential side. 

Mr. Frantz stated it happens periodically in sections that could be clarified and made easier for 

everyone.  Two areas where there is the most questioning is the fence code and the sign code. 

 

Discussion and any recommendations concerning 

Joint west recommended their approval of the UW Master Plan to the City of Madison’s Plan 

Commission.  UW Master Plan will go to the Plan Commission in June and then to the City 

Council for approval.   

Mr. Imes stated the UW has done a good job on including the village and creating a good master 

plan.  The Village also has a good relationship with the UW established now. 

Mr. Frantz stated the WIMR wedge has been approved to construct two additional stories. 

 

Adjourn 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:37 pm 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

 

Karla Endres 

Deputy Clerk 


	6Ci Ord L-2017-1 Restricting Highway.pdf
	6Ci a Ord L-2017-1 reading 3 Holly
	6Ci b L-2017-1 Intersection Restriction Map
	6Ci c L-2017-1 Exhibit 1
	6Ci d L-2017-1 Exhibit 2 version 2a
	6Ci e L-2017-1 Exhibit 3

	6Di Cond Use 3616 LMD.pdf
	6Di a Cond Use Application
	6Di b Cond Use Plans
	6Di c Berbee Walsh Support 3616 Lake Mendota
	6Di d Cond Use Review and Findings-3616 LMD

	7Aii Discussion of Long Term Planning.pdf
	7Aii a Special Session Minutes
	7Aii b Baird Reports
	7Aii c Projected 5 Year Capital Plan (Comprehensive Listing)




